
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Daljit Lally, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk 
  

    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Andrea Todd 
Email: Andrea.Todd@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622606 
Date: 11 August 2021 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 

 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the HEALTH & WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be held on WEDNESDAY, 18 AUGUST 2021 in COMMITTEE 
ROOM 1, COUNTY HALL, MORPETH at 1.00 P.M.  

Yours faithfully 

 

 
Daljit Lally 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To:   Members of the Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
  

Cabinet Member: Wendy Pattison, H.G.H. Sanderson  
  
  
  
  

N.B. This meeting has been called at short notice in accordance with Section 100B (3) 
(a) of the Local Government Act 1972.  

  
  

Any member of the press or public may view the proceedings of this meeting live on 
our YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV.      

Public Document Pack



 
Health and Wellbeing OSC, 18 August 2021 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 

 

2.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required to disclose any personal interest (which includes 
any disclosable pecuniary interest) they may have in any of the items 
included on the agenda for the meeting in accordance with the Code of 
Conduct adopted by the Council on 4 July 2012, and are reminded that if 
they have any personal interests of a prejudicial nature (as defined under 
paragraph 17 of the Code Conduct) they must not participate in any 
discussion or vote on the matter.  
  
NB Any member needing clarification must contact the Monitoring 
Officer at monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk.  Please refer to the 
guidance on disclosures at the rear of this Agenda letter.  
 
 

 

3.   CALL IN: DISSOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP WITH 
NORTHUMBRIA HEALTHCARE 
 
The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Care and Children’s Services: ‘Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with 
Northumbria Healthcare’ on 3 August 2021.  
  
The Head of Democratic Services and Electoral Services subsequently 
received a request to “call in” the decision of Cabinet.    
  
The report provide information about the planning taking place for adult 
social care and public health services affected by the decision of 
Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust to terminate the 
partnership between the Trust and the Council which has been in place 
since 2011, and about the proposed future model for these services.   
  
The call in notice, call in form setting out that decision and the reasons for 
the call in, Cabinet report and the draft Cabinet Minute extract are 
attached.  

 
 

(Pages 1 
- 24) 

4.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by 
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk


 

Health and Wellbeing OSC, Wednesday, 18 August 2021 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussion or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

Name (please print):  

Meeting:  

Date:  

Item to which your interest relates:  

  

Nature of Registerable Personal Interest i.e either disclosable pecuniary interest (as 
defined by Annex 2 to Code of Conduct or other interest (as defined by Annex 3 to Code 
of Conduct) (please give details):  

  

  

 

 

 

Nature of Non-registerable Personal Interest (please give details): 

  
  
  
 
 
 
  

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting? 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Health and Wellbeing OSC, 18 August 2021 

1. Registerable Personal Interests – You may have a Registerable Personal Interest if the issue 
being discussed in the meeting: 
  
a)     relates to any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined by Annex 1 to the Code of Conduct); or 

 b)   any other interest (as defined by Annex 2 to the Code of Conduct)  

The following interests are Disclosable Pecuniary Interests if they are an interest of either you or your 
spouse or civil partner:  
  
(1) Employment, Office, Companies, Profession or vocation; (2) Sponsorship; (3) Contracts with the 
Council; (4) Land in the County; (5) Licences in the County; (6) Corporate Tenancies with the Council; 
or (7) Securities -  interests in Companies trading with the Council.  
  
The following are other Registerable Personal Interests: 
  
(1) any body of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management) to which 
you are appointed or nominated by the Council; (2) any body which  (i) exercises functions of a public 
nature or (ii) has charitable purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purpose includes the influence of 
public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a member (or in a 
position of general control or management ); or (3) any person from whom you have received within the 
previous three years a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of more than £50 which is attributable 
to your position as an elected or co-opted member of the Council. 
  
2. Non-registerable personal interests - You may have a non-registerable personal interest when 
you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or sub-committees, and you 
are, or ought reasonably to be, aware that a decision in relation to an item of business which is to be 
transacted might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well being or financial position, or the well 
being or financial position of a person described below to a greater extent than most inhabitants of the 
area affected by the decision. 

The persons referred to above are: (a) a member of your family; (b) any person with whom you have a 
close association; or (c) in relation to persons described in (a) and (b), their employer, any firm in which 
they are a partner, or company of which they are a director or shareholder. 

3. Non-participation in Council Business 

When you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or sub-committees, 
and you are aware that the criteria set out below  are satisfied in relation to any matter to be 
considered, or being considered at that meeting, you must : (a) Declare that fact to the meeting; (b) Not 
participate (or further participate) in any discussion of the matter at the meeting; (c) Not participate in 
any vote (or further vote) taken on the matter at the meeting; and (d) Leave the room whilst the matter 
is being discussed. 

The criteria for the purposes of the above paragraph are that: (a) You have a registerable or non-
registerable personal interest in the matter which is such that a member of the public knowing the 
relevant facts would reasonably think it so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the 
public interest; and either (b) the matter will affect the financial position of yourself or one of the 
persons or bodies referred to above or in any of your register entries; or (c) the matter concerns a 
request for any permission, licence, consent or registration sought by yourself or any of the persons 
referred to above or in any of your register entries. 

This guidance is not a complete statement of the rules on declaration of interests which are 
contained in the Members’ Code of Conduct.  If in any doubt, please consult the Monitoring 
Officer or relevant Democratic Services Officer before the meeting. 



CALL-IN OF CABINET DECISION 

 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

 

Dissolution of the Council’s Partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

 

The report provided information about the planning taking place for adult social care and 
public health services affected by the decision of Northumbria Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust to terminate the partnership between the Trust and the Council which 
had been in place since 2011, and about the proposed future model for these services. 

 

The Chief Executive outlined the background for members to the current position and 
the Executive Director for Adult Social Care and Children’s Services detailed the 
immediate future arrangements for the services which would be affected.   
  
Councillor Pattison asked about the exit arrangements with HDFT. Mrs McEvoy Carr 
advised that this would be a partnership arrangement not a contractual one and a 
twelve month exit clause was currently being looked.  Councillor Pattison stressed the 
need for a seamless change in delivery of the service so residents could continue to be 
supported.   
  
Councillor Watson asked whether officers were confident that HDFT could provide as 
good a service as that provided by Northumbria. Mrs McEvoy Carr replied that 
Harrogate currently had a Good CQC rating and Northumbria had an Outstanding 
rating, though these were both from 5 years ago.  Some significant due diligence had 
been done with regional counterparts who had all been very positive regarding their 
service delivery.  In response to Councillor Pattison, she advised that staffing would not 
change, and services would be delivered by the same people, hopefully enhanced with 
new ideas from the Trust.   
  
Councillor Wearmouth commented that he would have liked more time to understand 
more about the background to the current position in light of recent information received 
and advised he would abstain from the vote.  
  
The Leader commented that he was keen to make progress on this matter.  He referred 
to the report from Health and Wellbeing OSC which had requested detailed financial 
information to be made available and for updates.  He supported this and agreed with 
the points that no staff should be disadvantaged and there should be no operational 
changes.   

  
RESOLVED that:-  

  
(a) Cabinet note that the Council’s partnership agreement with Northumbria 

Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust will come to an end on 30 September 2021, at 
the request of the Trust as notified in March 2021;  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



  
(b) Cabinet note that, while this was not the Council’s preferred outcome, the 

dissolution of the partnership creates the opportunity to take forward the 
development of a new model of integrated working between adult social care and 
a range of NHS, Council and other services supporting people with long-term care 
and support needs in the community, and to integrate public health services more 
closely with other services, as described in section 4 of the report;  

  
(c)  Cabinet note that the most appropriate viable option for the adult social care 

functions which were delivered by Northumbria under the partnership agreement is 
for them to be operated directly by the Council from 1 October 2021, and that 
planning is underway to prepare for the transfer of employment of the 
approximately 600 staff carrying out these functions;  

  
(d)  Cabinet confirm that two smaller services which formed part of the partnership also 

transfer from Northumbria to become directly operated by the Council: the joint 
equipment loan service (JELS) and the “integrated well-being service” funded by 
the Council under its public health duties;  

  
(e)  Cabinet note that arrangements are being made to ensure the continuation of the 

seamless delivery of services in relation to some specific teams where currently 
Council-funded and NHS-funded staff operate as an integrated team under a 
single management structure;   

   
(f)  Cabinet note that detailed planning is taking place jointly with Northumbria officers 

to prepare for associated changes in areas such as ICT;  
  

(g)  Cabinet note that planning work to date has identified both some potential 
additional costs to the Council and some likely savings, and that it is not yet 
possible to provide a firm indication of the overall financial impact;  

  
(h)  the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Children's Services be authorised 

to make any necessary decisions required to ensure that the transfer of functions 
takes place with minimum disruption to services and to staff, and without 
unnecessary costs, in consultation with Cabinet Members for Adult Services and 
Children’s Services and with the Interim Section 151 Officer;  

  
(i)  Cabinet note that a consultation is currently taking place about a proposed 

partnership with Harrogate and District NHS Foundation Trust (HDFT) under which 
the 0-19 public health services currently operated by Northumbria HDFT would 
transfer to HDFT; and  

  
(j)  the report of the Health and Wellbeing OSC be supported. 

  
Councillor Wearmouth abstained from voting on this matter.    
  

Page 2

bookmark://_bookmark0/


 

The reason for the call-in is that the decision was not taken in accordance with Article 

13 of the constitution, namely: 

 

(a) due and appropriate consultation and the taking of professional advice from 

officers; 

 

(b) a presumption in favour of openness, and 

 

(c) clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 

 

by the following seven signatories (five required): 

 

Cllr Peter Jackson 
Cllr David Bawn 
Cllr Malcolm Robinson 
Cllr Christine Taylor 
Cllr Catherine Homer 
Cllr John Beynon 
Cllr Cliff Humphrey 
 

 

The decision will be considered by the Health and Wellbeing OSC on 18 August 2021 at 

1:00pm.  

 

 

 

J. Roll 

Democratic Services Manager 

 

Jackie.Roll@northumberland.gov.uk 

01670 622603 

Page 3

mailto:Jackie.Roll@northumberland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



  

HEALTH AND WELLBEING OSC  
  

REPORT TO CABINET  
  

03 AUGUST 2021  
  
  
  
Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare  
  
Daljit Lally, Chief Executive and Cath McEvoy-Carr, Executive Director of Adult 
Social Care and Children's Services, introduced the report to the committee 
Yesterday 2 August 2021.  An invitation to attend this meeting had been extended to 
all scrutiny members as it was felt the dissolution of the partnership raised questions 
within the terms of reference of all 4 scrutiny committees. Liz Morgan, Director of 
Public Health, and Maureen Taylor, Director of Business Development was also in 
attendance to answer questions.  
 
The Committee questioned why Northumbria Healthcare had brought an end to the 
partnership and were interested to understand the reasons why. The chair pointed 
out that the meeting had been called to discuss the new arrangements that were 
being put in place not the reasons why the Trust had withdrawn from the partnership. 
Nevertheless, some members of the Committee felt at some point it should ask the 
Trust to attend a scrutiny meeting to explain its actions       
 
Reassurance was sought that staff transferring would not be disadvantaged in any 
way and there would be no detrimental changes to the operational management of 
any services.  Work was being undertaken to understand the practical and financial 
implications of any changes, but members understood that the dissolution of the 
partnership would allow the Council to work closer with other organisations such 
CNTW and Northumberland Community Together in order to further enhance the 
current provisions to support vulnerable residents.  
 
Members articulated their desire to receive updates early in 2022 and requested 
complete and detailed financial information be made available to allow to the 
committee to fully understand all the implications as a result of the changes.  
 
The Committee RESOLVED to advise the Cabinet that it supported the 
recommendations contained in the report and hope the changes would support the 
advancement of social care and drive further improvement for the residents of 
Northumberland. 
  
  
  
  

COUNCILLOR JEFF REID  
  

CHAIRMAN  
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



A 

 
 

CABINET 

Date: 3 August 2021 

Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Report of the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Children’s Services 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Wendy Pattison, Adult Wellbeing 
 

 

Purpose of report 

To provide information about the planning taking place for adult social care and public 
health services affected by the decision of Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 
to terminate the partnership between the Trust and the Council which has been in place 
since 2011, and about the proposed future model for these services. 

 

Recommendations 

Cabinet is recommended: 

1. To note that the Council’s partnership agreement with Northumbria Healthcare 
NHS Foundation Trust will come to an end on 30 September 2021, at the request 
of the Trust as notified in March 2021. 

2. To note that, while this was not the Council’s preferred outcome, the dissolution 
of the partnership creates the opportunity to take forward the development of a 
new model of integrated working between adult social care and a range of NHS, 
Council and other services supporting people with long-term care and support 
needs in the community, and to integrate public health services more closely 
with other services, as described in section 4 of this report. 

3. To note that the most appropriate viable option for the adult social care 
functions which were delivered by Northumbria under the partnership agreement 
is for them to be operated directly by the Council from 1 October 2021, and that 
planning is underway to prepare for the transfer of employment of the 
approximately 600 staff carrying out these functions. 

4. To confirm that two smaller services which formed part of the partnership 
should also transfer from Northumbria to become directly operated by the 
Council: the joint equipment loan service (JELS) and the “integrated well-being 
service” funded by the Council under its public health duties. 

5. To note that arrangements are being made to ensure the continuation of the 
seamless delivery of services in relation to some specific teams where currently 
Council-funded and NHS-funded staff operate as an integrated team under a 
single management structure. 

Page 11



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 2 

 

6. To note that detailed planning is taking place jointly with Northumbria officers to 
prepare for associated changes in areas such as ICT 

7. To note that planning work to date has identified both some potential additional 
costs to the Council and some likely savings, and that it is not yet possible to 
provide a firm indication of the overall financial impact 

8. To authorise the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Children's Services 
to make any necessary decisions required to ensure that the transfer of 
functions takes place with minimum disruption to services and to staff, and 
without unnecessary costs, in consultation with Cabinet members for Adult 
Services and Children services and with the Interim Section 151 Officer 

9. To note that a consultation is currently taking place about a proposed 
partnership with Harrogate and District NHS Foundation Trust (HDFT) under 
which the 0-19 public health services currently operated by Northumbria HDFT 
would transfer to HDFT 

 

Link to Corporate Plan 

This report is relevant to the “Living” priority in the Corporate Plan. 
 

Key issues  

1. For almost two decades, most of the Council’s operational statutory adult social care 
functions have been delivered under partnership arrangements by NHS bodies – 
Northumberland Care Trust from 2002 to 2011 and Northumbria Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust from 2011 to the present. This will now come to an end from 
September 2021, following a decision by Northumbria Healthcare that it no longer 
wishes to have delegated responsibility for statutory adult social care functions. Adult 
social care staff will transfer employment to the county Council from 1 October. 

2. The Council’s partnership with Northumbria also includes some public health services. 
A consultation is taking place about a new partnership with a different NHS Trust 
(HDFT), under which that Trust will deliver health visiting and school nursing services, 
aiming to integrate them closely with other “early help” services for children and young 
people, many of which are coordinated or delivered by the Council. HDFT already 
operates these services on behalf of a number of local authorities in the north-east. It is 
recommended that Integrated Wellbeing Services should in future be directly provided 
by the Council. 

3. It is not expected that the dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria will 
lead to any reduction in the Council’s long-standing commitment to the integration of 
health and social care services. A particular focus in future will be further developing 
integrated arrangements with NHS primary care networks and with specialist NHS 
mental health services. Close  working with Northumbria Healthcare is also expected 
to continue, including joint working with community health services, which are 
themselves likely to be increasingly closely linked with primary care networks, and joint 
arrangements to ensure that people who need care and support after treatment can 
safely and rapidly return home from hospital. 

Page 12



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 3 

 

Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

BACKGROUND 

1. The origins of the partnership 

1.1 The majority of staff funded by the Council to carry out its statutory adult social care 
functions have been employed by the NHS since 2002, when Northumberland Care 
Trust was created as an integrated health and social care organisation. Most adult 
care staff transferred to the Care Trust, other than those working in in-house care 
services such as day centres, home care and residential establishments. The Care 
Trust also provided community health services (including district nursing, health 
visiting, school health advisors and a range of specialised community services). 
The aim of the arrangement was to provide a framework for the development of 
integrated community health and care services, and it was initially anticipated that 
care trusts would become a widespread model for integration. 

1.2 Changes in Government policy later in that decade created an expectation that the 
“commissioning” of NHS community services should be separated from the delivery 
of those services. The NHS community services which had been located in the Care 
Trust therefore needed to transfer into a new organisation, and Northumbria 
successfully bid to take over their management. Northumbria agreed with the 
Council that with the aim of maximum integration of services, the two organisations 
would enter into a partnership agreement under section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 
under which the operational adult social services functions which had been 
delivered by the Care Trust would be delegated to Northumbria, with both the health 
and social care staff transferring employment from the Care Trust to Northumbria. 

1.3 Following the passage of the Health and Social Care Act 2012, there was a further 
change in 2013, when responsibility for commissioning many public health services 
transferred from NHS commissioners to local authorities, including a number of 
services provided by Northumbria. Initially, these included sexual health services 
and “integrated well-being services”. From 2015, the Council also became 
responsible for commissioning health visiting and school nursing services (“0-19 
public health services”). Initially, the Council continued to operate within the 
previous contractual framework under which NHS commissioners had procured 
these services. However, from 2018, both the integrated well-being services and the 
0-19 public health services became additional components of the wider partnership 
agreement between the two organisations. 

2. The partnership agreement 

2.1 The partnership agreement between the Council and Northumbria included most of 
the operational adult social care functions which had been delegated to 
Northumberland Care Trust, though on advice from the Department of Health the 
Council’s strategic commissioning and safeguarding functions were excluded, and 
transferred back to the local authority in 2013. 

2.2 Reflecting the intention that the partnership would be a framework within which the 
two organisations would develop services jointly, rather than a relationship between 
the council as a “commissioner” and the Trust as a “provider”, the partnership 
agreement provided for joint management at a senior level. Initially, the Council’s 
statutory Director of Adult Social Services was appointed as an executive director of 
the Trust, managing both the adult social care services delegated under the 

Page 13



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 4 

 

partnership and the community health services which had transferred to the Trust 
from Northumberland Care Trust and North Tyneside Primary Care Trust. This 
arrangement was modified over time, to take account of changes in the Council’s 
senior management arrangements, but intertwined management arrangements at 
multiple levels, including executive director level, remained central to the partnership 
model, and were in practice more significant as a mechanism for aligning the 
priorities of the two organisations than the formal Partnership Board provided for in 
the partnership agreement. 

2.3 Under the partnership agreement, Northumbria manages adult social care staff, 
including social work, therapy and related teams and staff carrying out support and 
back-office functions, and the costs of these staff are recharged to the Council. The 
staff employed by the Trust carry out assessments of the needs of individuals and 
arrange services to meet them, while the costs of these services are met by the 
Council. 

2.4 An updated partnership agreement adopted from April 2018 incorporated into it the 
0-19 public health services and the integrated well-being services, and created a 
framework within which it would be possible for further public health services to be 
added subsequently – prior to the decision to dissolve the partnership, it had been 
expected that sexual health services would also be added to it. The 2018 version of 
the agreement also clarified that the Northumberland Joint Equipment Loan Service 
(JELS) formed part of the partnership. 

3. The 2020 review of the partnership agreement 

3.1 The original partnership agreement entered into in 2011 was formally for a two-year 
period, with an expectation that it would be reviewed during its second year to 
confirm longer-term arrangements, when the future shape of the NHS had become 
clearer following the passage of what became the 2012 Health and Social Care Act. 
In the outcome, the agreement was extended several times with modifications 
without a full review, since NHS organisational arrangements have remained 
unstable throughout the subsequent decade, nationally and locally, with local 
proposals including a bid to make Northumbria responsible for the overall 
coordination of health services in Northumberland as an “accountable care 
organisation”. 

3.2 It was agreed in 2019 that the two-year agreement from April 2018 should be 
extended unchanged for a further 12 months from April 2020, during which period a 
full review of the partnership would finally take place, with the expectation that a 
new partnership agreement, which might include significant changes, would be 
introduced from April 2021. 

3.3 The partnership review proved challenging, in part because of the unanticipated 
arrival of the Covid pandemic, and in part because the review made apparent 
significant differences between the two organisations which were difficult to 
overcome. NHS and local government services come from very different 
backgrounds, culture, governance & accountability arrangements; even use of 
nomenclature can be dissimilar – for example, what is meant by commissioning is 
very different in social and health care. Some HR issues such as changes to staff 
terms and conditions, and differing policies and procedures and their application had 
been a cause of concern for the Council; at the same time Northumbria’s Board had 
expressed ongoing concerns about the mechanisms for the accountability, 
governance and oversight of delegated functions. These challenges were not 

Page 14



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 5 

 

unique to Northumberland and the two organisations’ success in managing them to 
date had been a testament to the commitment to integration of front-line 
professionals and leadership across health and care, but it became clear that the 
two organisations brought different expectations to the review. 

3.4 Integration, of particular importance in community settings for people with disabling 
long-term conditions necessarily involves multiple agencies, including primary health 
care, the mental health services for which the Cumbria, Northumberland Tyne and 
Wear (CNTW) NHS Foundation Trust is responsible, and a wide circle of other 
organisations including ambulance services, third sector providers, housing, and 
planning. In recognition of this, Council officers put forward in July 2020 a proposal 
in July 2020 for an expanded partnership model which would make it possible to 
involve more partners in the governance of the partnership. Under the provisional 
name Northumberland Care Services Together (CaST), the proposed model 
involved a stand-alone ‘virtual’ organisation, which would still have had as its core a 
joint Council/Northumbria management structure, operating at arm’s length from 
both the Council and the Trust while reporting to both organisations. The CaST 
would have included staff employed by both organisations, with a flexible approach 
to decisions about which organisation would be the employer for which posts. 

3.5 The vision was for the CaST to build on existing strengths and experience, 
developing to support integration with NHS Primary Care Networks, CNTW 
specialist services and other partners, and providing a framework in which it would 
be possible to develop new models of care. This proposal was felt by the 
Northumbria Board to be too complex and risk exacerbating the concerns about 
accountability and governance, so agreement could not be reached. 

3.6 By early 2021, Northumbria’s view was that no solution could be found based on 
current partnership arrangements which would achieve the objectives and resolve 
the concerns of both organisations. The Trust believes that the revised 
organisational arrangements in the NHS announced in the February 2021 White 
Paper “Integration and Innovation: working together to improve health and social 
care for all” provide a framework in which integrated services can be developed 
without the need for section 75 partnerships. Council officers’ advice is that the 
impact of those proposed arrangements is not yet clear. 

3.7 Council officers proposed a further 12 month extension to the existing partnership 
arrangement, to allow time for reflection on the nature of the future relationship 
between the two organisations, and to ensure that there was time to plan carefully 
for any changes affecting the employment arrangements of a large group of staff, 
however the Trust was clear that it no longer wished to retain delegated 
responsibility for adult social care statutory functions for any longer than the period 
necessary to make revised arrangements. While the Trust was open to the 
possibility that it might continue to host as an employer the staff carrying out adult 
social care functions, the Council’s legal advice was that there was no lawful way in 
which this would be possible if no statutory functions were delegated. It was 
therefore agreed that the partnership agreement will be extended only for a six- 
month period, to come to an end on 30 September 2021. 

4. New service models 

4.1 While the dissolution of the partnership was not the outcome which the Council 
sought when it initiated the review, it creates the opportunity to move forward with a 
new model for supporting adults with long-term care and support needs, similar to 

Page 15



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 6 

 

proposals which the Council made during the review of the Northumbria partnership, 
though hosted by the Council rather than Northumbria Healthcare. 

4.2 The proposal is to develop an open partnership, in which adult social care services 
will be one element in a wider integrated approach to supporting people with care 
and support needs in the community. Because this new model will need to be jointly 
developed with a number of public sector and other organisations, and in 
partnership with the people who it will exist to support, it would be premature to 
make detailed proposals about its formal structure, but the Cabinet is asked to adopt 
the overall ambition and principles set out in the following paragraphs. 

4.3 The starting point for the new model would be the recognition that supporting people 
with long-term health and care needs in the community is a fundamentally different 
task from providing the kind of focused and coordinated response to a health crisis, 
which, at their best, hospital services deliver. 

4.4 People living in the community who have care and support needs, but are not in 
crisis, need to be treated as active agents rather than passive patients, with an 
understanding that their health and care needs are only one element in their lives. 
Objectives which will be more central for a community-based partnership than for a 
hospital service (though they are also sometimes important while people are in 
hospital) include: 

a) ensuring that the person themselves has as much control as possible over the 
way in which their care and support is provided 

b) treating family and other unpaid carers as a core element in people’s care plans, 
and taking account of their own needs as well as those of the person 

c) recognising that there are trade-offs between minimising the risks arising from a 
person’s disabilities and health conditions and supporting the person to live the 
life they choose; and that the person’s own choices should determine how these 
are balanced 

d) ensuring coordination between the responses of a number of separate agencies 

e) supporting people to make the most of the opportunities available in the wider 
community 

f) developing new models of care and services which link them to wider 
developments which also involve other Council services and external partners. 

4.5 The interface between community services and hospitals will always be important. 
Community services should continue to assist hospitals to relieve pressure on them 
during winter and other crises, and to make sure that people do not have to spend 
longer in hospital than they need because of lack of support at home. But 
community services work in a very different context from hospital services, and have 
a significantly different ethos and style of working. 

4.6 Among the tasks which will need to be addressed are: 

a) the closer integration of adult social care and community health services with 
primary health care networks and individual GP practices, including the 
development of “care and support teams” linking social work and care 
management closely with individual practices or small groups of practices; 

b) a move towards co-location of social workers and other staff with specialist 
services in the Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear (CNTW) NHS 

Page 16



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 7 

 

Foundation Trust, to support people for whom CNTW services are their most 
crucial form of NHS involvement; 

c) further progress with Northumbria Healthcare towards a “discharge to assess” 
model for rehabilitation after hospital treatment, based on a presumption that 
most forms of rehabilitation are best provided in the setting where people will be 
living when the programme of therapy has finished; 

d) joint work with community health services to develop community-based support 
in a health crisis to reduce the need for hospital admission, or facilitate 
discharge; 

e) improved joint arrangements with CNTW for after-care following detention in 
hospital under the Mental Health Act; 

f) more integrated support for care homes, with closer links between primary care, 
social care, community health services and public health; 

g) the development of a wider range of accommodation and support options for 
older people, intermediate between traditional care home models and the 
increasingly overstretched model of providing high levels of home care support to 
people in the homes that suited their needs and preferences while they were 
working or in the early years of retirement; 

h) joint working more broadly with the Council’s planning, housing and property 
services to ensure that there are housing options available for older people in the 
County which support them in remaining independent and socially connected as 
they age, and that all decisions about housing and land use take into account the 
changing demography of the County and the needs and choices of a greying 
population; 

i) the development of robust community-based services for people with a learning 
disability or autism who would otherwise be at risk of long-term hospitalisation 
because of “challenging behaviour”; 

j) improved support for people with chaotic lives associated with alcohol, drug or 
other substance misuse; 

k) the development of an integrated approach to connecting people with disabilities 
or disabling health conditions with local voluntary and community services, 
bringing together the “social prescribing” programme in primary care, the 
“support planning” service in adult social care, and related public health 
initiatives. The Northumberland Communities Together programme, initially a 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic, will have a central role in this development. 

4.7 The new model may or may not evolve into a distinct organisational structure and 
involve new formal partnership arrangements. The focus will be on developing a 
shared understanding of the best way to meet the needs of people whose 
opportunities to live the life they choose may depend on multiple public and other 
agencies working effectively together; any future new organisational arrangements 
should develop out of the process of working together with individuals. 

Public health services 

4.8 The dissolution of the Northumbria partnership also offers an opportunity to build 
closer links between the public health services which formed part of that partnership 
and other Council and third sector services. Public health services for children and 
families can be brought closer together with other “early help” services; and the 

Page 17



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 8 

 

“integrated wellbeing service” currently operated by Northumbria, which works in 
communities to improve public health, can become more closely integrated with the 
wider programme of community-based initiatives being developed by 
Northumberland Communities Together. 

5. Immediate future arrangements for the services 

5.1 Different issues arise for each element of the services currently included in the 
partnership arrangement. 

Adult social care services 

5.2 For the adult social care services which form the largest component of the 
partnership agreement, there is no realistic option available other than the transfer 
of the staff involved to the direct employment of the Council. Detailed work is in 
progress to prepare for this transfer, and to identify and plan for all of its 
consequences. Some significant issues are not yet fully resolved, including: 

a) establishing what the financial impact will be of the entitlement of transferred staff 
to move onto Council terms and conditions. Where Council terms and conditions 
for a post are less favourable than those in the NHS, transferred staff will have 
the right to have their current position protected, but it currently appears likely 
that some significant groups of staff would benefit financially from opting to move 
onto Council terms and conditions. 

b) establishing whether transferred staff will be entitled to remain in the NHS 
pension scheme, and if so what conditions may be attached to that 

5.3 There are a number of areas in which particular issues arise because of an 
especially close integration of adult social care and health services: 

a) Hospital discharge and reablement services. The Home Safe service based 
in Northumbria hospitals, which is responsible for ensuring that patients can be 
safely and rapidly discharged home when they no longer need to be in hospital, 
and the Short-Term Support Service (STSS) which provides intensive support at 
home to help people recover their independence, often after a hospital 
discharge, are both currently integrated services including both Council funded 
and NHS funded posts. Because of the high degree of integration, there has 
been no sharp distinction between health and social care roles. After examining 
the balance of the day-to-day work of staff in these services, the Trust have 
come to the view that a number of the post holders who have been funded by the 
Council are in practice carrying out a higher proportion of tasks which they would 
classify as “health” tasks than “social care” tasks, and should remain Trust 
employees, funded in future from their NHS budget. Some further discussion 
about these posts will be necessary, but It may potentially be financially 
advantageous to the Council. However, since the primary focus must be on the 
service provided to people in need of help to recover their independence after a 
health crisis, the most important objective will be to maintain a closely integrated 
approach within services which will no longer have a single management 
structure. 

b) NHS Continuing health care (CHC). The Council is responsible for the 
commissioning, case management and administration of CHC services under its 
separate partnership agreement with Northumberland Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG). To ensure that the process works in as integrated a manner as 
possible, the nurse assessment team in Northumbria which assesses eligibility 

Page 18



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 9 

 

for CHC is managed alongside adult social care services, though it is funded 
directly by the CCG as part of its NHS contract with the Trust. Discussions are 
taking place with the CCG about where this team might be located within the new 
NHS arrangements to make it possible to retain integrated management. 

c) Learning disability community nurses. Community learning disability nurses 
in Northumberland have worked alongside social work staff within an integrated 
management arrangement since the 1990s, though they are funded from NHS 
rather than Council budgets. The CCG plans to review this service to ensure 
that integration is maintained. This review will take place in the context of wider 
consideration of how social care support people with a learning disability can be 
more closely integrated with the related NHS services provided by the CNTW 
Trust. 

d) Nursing staff in directly provided care services. Some of the Council’s 
directly provided care services have nurses working in them who are employed 
by Northumbria. It is currently anticipated that these nurses will transfer to 
Council employment. 

The Joint Equipment Loan Service (JELS) 

5.4 The JELS service, which provides disability equipment and minor adaptations, is 
funded by the Council with a contribution from the CCG. It has been managed 
alongside adult social care services since the creation of the Care Trust in 2002, 
and works closely with the community occupational therapists in social care who are 
responsible for arranging some of the most specialist equipment, though it also 
takes referrals from a wide range of other health and social care professionals. It 
was explicitly brought within the partnership arrangement in 2018, clarifying a 
position which had not been clearly documented since the service transferred to 
Northumbria in 2011. 

5.5 Given this context, it is recommended that this service should now transfer to the 
Council. 28 people are employed in this service, the majority of whom work in the 
warehouse or as drivers transporting equipment to service users’ homes. It is 
anticipated that the lease of the warehouse in Cramlington, which is currently held 
by Northumbria, will transfer to the Council. 

The “integrated wellbeing service” (IWS) 

5.6 This is a public health service, employing 39 people, mostly comprising Health 
Improvement Practitioners, Health Trainers and Stop Smoking Advisors. It has 
strong focus on working with communities and community groups. While a small 
part of the service may be best regarded as being part of the core NHS activity of 
Northumbria (and therefore as not appropriately delivered or funded by the Council), 
most of its activities have a natural relationship with other areas of council 
community focused work. It is recommended that this service should transfer to the 
Council. 

The 0-19 public health service 

5.7 This service consists essentially of health visitors and school nurses. Since local 
authorities became responsible for 0-19 public health services, different local 
authorities have taken varying approaches to the delivery. In some areas, including 
neighbouring North Tyneside, the service is now delivered in-house by the local 
authority. In other areas it has been procured on the open market, and can be 
delivered by private companies or social enterprises. In Northumberland the 

Page 19



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 10 

 

decision was taken in 2018 that, rather than continuing a cycle of three yearly 
procurements for this service, it would be incorporated into the partnership with 
Northumbria, on the basis that this would enable a flexible joint approach to 
developing the service and integrating it with other “early help” services for children 
and young people. 

5.8 The Council is currently jointly consulting on a proposal to enter into a new 
partnership with HDFT which already operates 0-19 services in a number of local 
authorities in the north-east, including Northumberland’s immediate geographical 
neighbours Gateshead and County Durham. A separate report on this service will 
be brought forward following the conclusion of this consultation. 

Page 20



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 11 

 

IMPLICATIONS ARISING OUT OF THE REPORT 
 

Policy No change is proposed to the Council’s long- 
standing policy of seeking to integrate health and 
social care services as closely as possible. The 
ending of the partnership with Northumbria is 
expected to be associated with increasingly close 
integration with NHS primary care and mental 
health services, and with other Council services 
including Northumberland Communities Together. 

Finance and value for money Work is still in progress to understand all financial 
impacts of the transfer of staff. Costs are likely to 
include the effects of differences in pay rates 
between the Trust and the Council for some types 
of post and some one-off and ongoing additional IT 
costs. Savings currently identified include a 
number of posts which have been funded by the 
Council now being identified by the Trust as more 
properly funded from its NHS income. 

Legal Following questions raised by Northumbria, QC’s 
advice has been sought about the process for 
considering a different partnership for 0-19 public 
health services under Section 75 of the NHS Act 
2006. This advice has confirmed the lawfulness of 
the proposed approach. 

Procurement The services directly affected have been delegated 
to an NHS body under Section 75 of the NHS Act 
2006, rather than procured under a commercial 
arrangement, and the only service which it is not 
proposed to transfer to the direct management of 
the Council (the 0-19 public health service) will be 
arranged on the same basis as a partnership 
between two public bodies rather than a 
procurement. 

Human Resources Around 600 staff will transfer from NHS to local 
authority employment. It is expected that this 
transfer will take place in line with The Transfer of 
Undertakings (Protection of Employment) [TUPE] 
Regulations 2006. Work is continuing with the HR 
workstream to ensure the smooth transition 
between both organisations. 

Page 21



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 12 

 

Property Most of the staff transferring to the Council are 
already based in Council premises. Where staff 
are currently based in hospitals, we anticipate that 
Northumbria will wish them to remain based there, 
to support discharge arrangements. Officers 
anticipate that the lease for the warehouse in 
which the joint equipment loan service is provided 
will transfer to the Council. 

Equalities 

(Impact Assessment attached) 

Yes No    N/A 

Officers will keep under review the potential for 
there to be differential impacts of the changes on 
people with different protected characteristics. The 
decision to end the partnership agreement was not 
made by the Council, so any impacts arising from 
that decision itself are not a matter for the Council 
to assess. 

Risk Assessment A project management structure is in place to 
oversee the process of planning for the transfer of 
staff and associated changes. Risk logs are being 
maintained as part of this process. The most 
significant risk to achieving all necessary changes 
by 30 September is currently the complexity of the 
changes needed to ICT. Contingency 
arrangements are being considered. 

Crime & Disorder No impacts have currently been identified. 

Customer Considerations Officers are working to ensure that there is no 
disruption to individual service users. 

Carbon reduction No impacts have currently been identified. 

Health and wellbeing Officers are working to minimise any risk of 
deterioration in the quality of the services provided 
to people with care and support needs. Following 
the transfer, it is anticipated that there will be some 
opportunities to improve services through closer 
integration with NHS primary care and mental 
health services and with other Council services. 

Wards All 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

There are no background documents for this report within the meaning of the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 

 
 
 
 

Page 22



Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare 

Cabinet ▪ 3 August 2021 ▪ page 13 

 

Report sign off. 

Authors must ensure that officers and members have agreed the content of the report. 
 

 Full name of officer 

Monitoring Officer/Legal Neil Masson 

Executive Director of Finance & S151 Officer Jan Willis 

Executive Director Cath McEvoy-Carr 

Chief Executive Daljit Lally 

Portfolio Holder(s) Wendy Pattison 

 
 
 
 

Author and contact details 

Report Author: Stephen Corlett – Senior Manager (Policy) 
Phone: (01670) 62 3637 
Email: Stephen.Corlett@northumbria.nhs.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23

mailto:Stephen.Corlett@northumbria.nhs.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 CALL IN: Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare
	Call In Form - Dissolution of the Council’s?Partnership with Northumbria Healthcare
	OSC Report Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare
	Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare
	Recommendations Cabinet is recommended:
	Dissolution of the Council’s partnership with Northumbria Healthcare BACKGROUND
	2. The partnership agreement
	3. The 2020 review of the partnership agreement
	4. New service models
	Public health services

	5. Immediate future arrangements for the services
	Adult social care services
	The Joint Equipment Loan Service (JELS)
	The “integrated wellbeing service” (IWS)
	The 0-19 public health service

	IMPLICATIONS ARISING OUT OF THE REPORT



